
AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, March 22, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Kathi Bachelor (President), Donna Coon (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Carol Crothers (Treasurer), Laurel Dean (Assistant Secretary), Jim Carden (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Barbara Blake, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers 
(non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report

5. Member Comments – regarding Consent Agenda and/or Non-Agenda Items – Speakers are asked to provide their name
and GVR member number. Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

6. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: February 22, 2023
2) BOD Special Meeting Minutes: March 8, 2023
3) BOD Work Session Minutes: March 15, 2023

B. Financial Statements:
1) February Draft Financial Statement

C. Board Business
1) Approve Recommended Amendments to CPM Part 7 (Coon)
2) CPM Part 6, Section 2 Membership/Guests/Monitoring 6.2.2.K.1-5 (Coon)
3) Placement of Board Credo in CPM (Coon)

7. Action Items
A. BAC Recommendation for Board Approval: Italian Club (Coon)
B. 2023 Work Plan Approval (Somers)
C. Authorize Transfer of Expense from Initiatives to Operations and Authorize an Expenditure of

Approximately $79,836 from Initiatives to Pay the Balance Owed on Fitness Equipment for Desert
Hills Fitness Center (Webster)

D. Adopt FAC Recommended Procurement and Spending Authority Policy (Webster)
E. Major Capital Projects Policy (Crothers)

8. Committee Reports
A. Audit
B. Board Affairs



C. Fiscal Affairs
D. Investments
E. Nominations & Elections
F. Planning & Evaluation

9. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

10. Adjournment



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, February 22, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Kathi Bachelor (President), Donna Coon (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), Carol 
Crothers (Treasurer), Laurel Dean (Assistant Secretary), Jim Carden (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Barbara Blake, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers (non-
voting) 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David 
Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Members Services Director) 

Visitors: 52 Including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Bachelor called the meeting to order at 2:00pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the
roll; quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Lawless seconded to amend the Agenda by removing
Action Item 8.E. (Board Policy for GVR to Follow Internal Financial Manual/Process
Approach to Major Capital Projects/Monthly Project Plan) and put it on the Special Meeting
Agenda for March 8.

Director Dean and Director Crothers withdrew their Action Item: 8.D. and 8.E respectively.

No vote was taken for the first amendment made by Director Boyett due to the Action Items
being withdrawn.

MOTION: Director Lawless moved, Director Boyett seconded to amend the Agenda by
removing Action Item 8.F. (Request Administration Prepare Glass Arts Design for 2,500
Square Feet and Send for Competitive Bid)
Failed: 6 yes (Bachelor, Boyett, Coon, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless) / 6 no

Director Gilbert asked to have Consent Agenda 7.B 1&2 removed from the Consent Agenda
for the CFO David Webster to discuss separately before the Action Items.

MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Lawless seconded to move 9. Committee Reports
above Action Item 8.F.
Failed:  5 yes (Bachelor, Boyett, Coon, Gilbert, Lawless) / 7 no

1

Consent Agenda A.1



MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the Agenda as 
Amended.  
Passed: 10 yes / 1 no (Boyett) / 1 abstain (Coon) 

3. President Report
• The members were thanked for showing up, for their patience, for participating, and

for always coming back to the meetings.

4. CEO Report
• Desert Hills Fitness Center: the mechanical, the electrical and the plumbing rough-ins

have begun. This will be completed the first week of March. Store front windows and
doors are being installed. Fire alarm rough-in is scheduled for March 2. The stucco will
begin soon and be finished the first week of March. The estimated completion of
construction is the end of April and hope to open the Desert Hills Fitness Center this
spring.

• Future Glass Arts Space at Santa Rita Springs: Revisions to the final designs have been
submitted to PIMA County. Request for Proposal is extended to March 1, instead of
February 22. Awarding the Contract will be considered at a Special Meeting on March
8.

• Ceramics Expansion at Desert Hills: The Board will be asked on March 8 at the Special
Meeting for direction in proceeding in this dedicated club space.

• Del Sol Clubhouse: Architectural Drawings are moving forward. Construction of the
upper floor restrooms is underway. The Billiards playroom is open with three billiard
tables available. There are temporary Porta Potties outside while the bathrooms are
under construction.

• West Center/Art Center: Program designs have been developed and received by the
architect, and under review. Alternative plans are being considered for expanding
West Center Lapidary rather than building a new building. At the Special Meeting on
March 8, the Board will be asked for direction on how to move forward.

• Santa Rita Springs: Upper deck repairs and recoating beginning May 8.
• East Center Lapidary: Awning structure materials are on order and installation will be

scheduled once received by the vendor. This project was part of the Fiscal Year 2023
Club funding request.

• East Center, West Center, Canoa Ranch, and Canoa Hills: HVAC replacements will take
place mid-April through October.

• Canoa Hills: Locker room and restroom will be fully remodeled beginning in April.
• Canoa Hills, Desert Hills, Las Campanas, and Canoa Ranch: Pool decks will be repaired

and resurfaced beginning in May.
• East Center: Two billiard tables already in place, and a billiard and snooker table are

now available.

5. Member comments: None

6. PRESENTATIONS
A. Member Assistance Program (MAP) Presentation

• For 2023 - 100 applicants for MAP, 93 received full awards and five received partial
awards. Only two were denied mainly for technical reasons.

• In 2022 there were 72 members helped by MAP.

2



• In 2022 $36,360 was paid for MAP recipients; and in 2023 there was $48,324 paid for
MAP recipients. This is a 33 percent increase for 2023.

• There were 559 individuals who contributed to MAP through GVR – that is 4.1 percent
of the GVR membership. This does not include what the GVR Foundation or the clubs
contributed.

• MAP funds of approximately $10,000 are carried over from year to year.

B. Quarterly Financial Presentation
• 4th Quarterly Report: Total revenue was .6 percent more than budgeted. All the

expenses were 6.9 percent under budget. There is a surplus, as calculated by the
formula in the CPM, of $410,000.

C. Member Survey Results Presentation
• COO Natalie Whitman introduced Terrie Glass, Zelos, who conducted the 2022

Comprehensive Survey for GVR. Terrie Glass, Zelos, facilitated the GVR Strategic Plan in
2021 and was able to craft the survey with the Strategic Plan in mind.

• Terrie Glass presented the survey with an in-depth overview with highlights:
 Selected group was 5,000 randomly selected with 887 surveys returned – 18

percent response rate which gives a 95 percent confident level, 3 percent level
of error and can be generalized to full membership.  1,268 additional non-
selected group responded on the computer or picking up a survey from a
Center to complete.  The non-selected group response; lined up with the
sample group with the exception of the four areas ( 1)  More likely to have
participated in any activity at GVR in the last 3 years: 90.8 percent compared to
randomly selected group with 83.5 percent;  2) Tend to rate the value for
money of GVR higher with 3.89, compared to randomly selected group with
3.71;  3) More likely to vote in the upcoming GVR Board election with 4.33,
compared to randomly selected group with 3.92; and 4) More likely to know
about the Member Assistance Program with 72.2 percent, compared to
randomly selected group at 57 percent. The non-selected group was not shown
in the graphs only the random group.

 Overall satisfaction in Mission and Vision: 75 percent satisfied with services and
programs, and 73 percent satisfied with experience of staff.

 Quality of Life:  73 percent agree GVR enhances quality of life, 58 percent social
opportunities, 54 percent leisure education.

 The survey can be found on the GVR website.

CEO Somers said overall there are increases in satisfaction of GVR members since the last 
survey in 2021.  

7. Consent Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Lawless seconded to approve the Consent
Agenda.
Passed: unanimous
A. Minutes:
 BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: January 25, 2023
 BOD Work Session Minutes: February 15, 2023

B. Financial Statements:  - Moved from Consent Agenda to first item on Action Items
 Draft December Financial Statement

3



 Draft January Financial Statement

8. Action Items
CFO David Webster presented an overview of the draft financial statements for December and
January per Director Gilbert’s request in Agenda Approval.

The Quarterly presentation covered the draft December Financial Statement. The draft
January statement shows revenue was down due to low home sales. The budget projected
sale of 82 homes and actual was 70 homes sold. On the expense side, eight percent under
budget. There needs to show a surplus to fund the MMR and Initiatives.

MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Blake seconded to accept the financials.
Passed: unanimous

A. Adopt Compensation Philosophy
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Dean seconded to delete the sentence “GVR’s
Compensation Philosophy includes a strategy to eventually “meet” the labor market by
aligning its pay ranges to the 50th percentile of the respective market ranges, which may
require more than one fiscal year to achieve.”

Director Boyett proposed to keep the first part of the sentence by putting a period after
“market” and to remove the word “eventually.” The sentence reads “GVR’s Compensation
Philosophy includes a strategy to “meet” the labor market.” Director Hillyer and Director
Dean agreed to Director Boyett’s proposal.

Passed: unanimous

MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Lawless seconded to adopt the
Compensation Philosophy as amended.
Passed: unanimous

B. Adopt Board Credo
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Dingman seconded to approve the Board
Credo.

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Boyett moved, Director Lawless seconded to add to the
Board Credo’s first set of bullets at the bottom: “We commit to abide by the current GVR
governing documents.”
Passed: 8 yes / 3 no (Austin, Crothers, Hillyer) / 1 abstain (Dean)

Amended Motion Passed: 10 yes / 1 no (Hillyer) / 1 abstain (Dean)

Amended Motion: Approve the Board Credo with the addition of the sentence “We
commit to abide by the current GVR governing documents,” as last bullet in the “As
individually elected board members we commit to our members” section.

C. CPM Part 3 Committees – Section 1 Only

4



Board Affairs Committee Chair Donna Coon provided an overview from the Board Affairs 
Committee on Part 3 Committees, Section 1.   

MOTION: Director Coon moved, Director Dean seconded to approve the 
recommendation from the Board Affairs Committee for the “clean’ version, as attached, 
Part 3 – Committees, Section 1.   
Passed: unanimous 

D. Major Capital Projects Decision Process   Director Dean removed this item during
Amend/Adopt Agenda.

E. Board Policy for GVR to Follow Internal Financial Manual/Process Approach to Major
Capital Projects/Monthly Project Plan Director Crothers removed this item during
Amend/Adopt Agenda.

F. Request Administration Prepare Glass Arts Design for 2,500 Square Feet and Send for
Competitive Bid – This topic was not addressed at the meeting.

Director Dean left the meeting at 4:22pm 

MOTION: Director Gilbert moved, Director Hillyer seconded to adjourn the meeting. 
Passed: 10 yes / 1 no (Lawless)  

9. Committee Reports – No reports given.
A. Audit Austin 
B. Board Affairs Coon 
C. Fiscal Affairs Crothers 
D. Investments Lawless 
E. Nominations & Elections Dingman 
F. Planning & Evaluation Hillyer 

10. Member Comments - No comments

11. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned at 4:30pm with Motion during Action Items.

5



MINUTES 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 

Wednesday, March 8, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Kathi Bachelor (President), Donna Coon (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Carol Crothers (Treasurer), Laurel Dean (Assistant Secretary), Jim Carden (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Barbara Blake, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers 
(non-voting) 

Visitors: 105 including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Bachelor called the meeting to order at 2pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the roll;
quorum established.

2. Adopt or Amend Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Lawless seconded to approve the Agenda.
Passed: 11 yes / 1 no (Crothers)

3. CEO Report
Desert Hills Fitness Center:

• The center is framed and sheet rock is being completed.
• The window frames are in and windows will be added soon.
• The Fitness Center will be complete at the end of April with a ribbon cutting in May once

the new equipment is in place.

Del Sol Clubhouse: 
• Currently there are three billiard tables in the upper level and a dart board, with a foosball

table on order.
• Completing the upper floor restrooms and being brought up to ADA code. Porta potties

available outside as restrooms are being completed.
• The architect is completing concept drawings for the whole building. Construction

documents will be done and permit ready. This is a four-to-five week process.
• This will go out for bid for a contractor to complete the project.
• The lower level will be completed for the Billiards Club and most of the billiard tables will

be in the lower level.
• A poker room will be built on the upper level after most of the billiards are moved down

stairs.

6

Consent Agenda A.2



• This project is being done in stages and projecting a fall completion if everything goes as
planned.

• Continue talks for a food and beverage tenant for the facility.

4. Action Items
A. Award Contract for Glass Arts Studio

CEO Scott Somers reviewed the history of the Glass Arts Studio. The request before the Board
is to move forward on awarding a contract for the space at Santa Rita Spring.

MOTION: Director Lawless moved, Director Boyett seconded to award a contract for the
Glass Artists Improvement Project to Canyon Building & Design, with an amount not to
exceed $734,232.38, and authorize the President to sign the contract, subject to legal
counsel final review and approval.
Passed: 11 yes / 1 no (Hillyer)

MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Hillyer seconded to have the Glass Arts Club
share the class space with other clubs on an equal basis. Glass Arts Club can have first choice
for class space and the unused times be made available for other clubs.  Do this
arrangement for a year and evaluate at the end of the year.
Motion Withdrawn by Director Carden.

B. Decision on Architectural Drawings for the Ceramics Club Space
CEO Scott Somers provided an overview for the Ceramics Club requested space expansion.

MOTION: Director Lawless moved, Director Blake seconded to direct staff to work with an
architect to develop complete permit and bid-ready construction documents and cost
estimates which would expand the current Ceramics Club space from 2,560 sq ft to 3,488 sq
ft and bring the entire space up to County Code requirements; with a cost not to exceed
$35,000.
Passed: Unanimous

5. Member Comments – Member comments were received at the meeting and on Zoom.

6. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Dean moved, Director Hillyer seconded to adjourn the meeting at 4:15 MST.
Passed: unanimous

7



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WORK SESSION 

Wednesday, March 15, 2023, 2pm 
WC Auditorium / Zoom 

Directors Present: Kathi Bachelor (President), Donna Coon (Vice President), **Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Carol Crothers (Treasurer), Jim Carden (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy Austin, *Barbara Blake, Ted 
Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers (non-voting) 

Absent: Laurel Dean (Assistant Secretary) 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David Webster 
(CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director)  

Visitors: 8 including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
President Bachelor called the Work Session to Order at 2:04pm. Secretary
Hillyer called the role.

2. Amend / Approve Agenda
MOTION: Director Carden moved, Director Dingman seconded to
approve the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

*Director Blake arrived at 2:12pm

3. Discuss 2023 Draft Work Plan
Highlights of Board discussion and consensus of changes to areas of the
Work Plan:

• The Work Plan is tied to the Strategic Plan and the numbers to the
left reference the Strategic Plan. The Strategic Plan addresses the
Board’s priorities.

• Slight word change: Administration – 5.2.3 – Work with Board of
Directors and consultant on comprehensive review and
improvements, of and to Committees, to specifically include purpose,
mission, and responsibilities, any processes committees must follow,
member terms, and appointment process.

• A Work Session is scheduled in May for this discussion of Committees
and Board.

• Remove Brown Dog Policy Governance Training: Administration –
5.4.1 – Seek additional Board and staff training opportunities such as
Roberts Rules of Order and Alexander Carrillo Consulting.

8

Consent Agenda A.3



• Move from Human Resources to Administration: Administration –
5.3.2 – With the Board of Directors, develop a Board (or committee)
ad-hoc committee to evaluate GVR’s need for volunteers, assess the
resources necessary to manage a volunteer pool, and develop
associated policy recommendations.

• Add: Communications – 3.4.3 – Develop a monthly report for Board
and members to include monthly data reports and project updates to
include progress and dollars spent to date.

• Change: Facility – 1.2.4 – With appropriate committee and Board
approval, improve and approve the Club request form. Removing –
implement CPR Form for both Capital and Club requests.

• Suggestion: Facilities – 1.4.1 – Supply vending machines instead of a
vendor for coffee and snacks.

• Facilities – 4.2.2 – only use hybrid or electric vehicles when it makes
sense financially.

• Addition: Finance – 4.3.4 Provide annual primer on reading financial
statements.

**Director Hillyer left at 3:06 pm 

4. Discuss Recommended Amendments to CPM Part 7
• Director Coon spoke on the changes to Corporate Policy Manual Part

7 Communications. Part 7 is about communication with members,
media, staff and Board.

• Board Affairs Committee approved recommendation to the Board of
Directors, Part 7 Communications at the February 14, 2023, meeting
after being reviewed by GVR’s attorney.

• Part 7 Communication comes before the Board for approval at the
Regular Meeting on March 22, 2023.

5. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Boyett seconded to
adjourn the meeting at 4:02pm.
Passed: unanimous

9



10

Consent Agenda B.1



11



12



13



14



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

CPM – Part 7 Communications 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: March 22, 2023 

Presented By: Donna Coon, Chair Consent Agenda: Yes 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 

Action Requested: 
Approve Recommended Amendments to CPM Part 7 Communications 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
The Board of Directors directed staff and the BAC to develop recommended 
improvements to CPM Part 7 Communications. 

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the BAC recommendations for the changes in CPM Part 7
Communications.
2) Review the BAC recommendations and make changes to any of the
recommendations.
3) Reject the BAC recommendations for Part 7 and send back to BAC for a
rewrite.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Attachments: 
1) CPM Part 7 Clean

15

Consent Agenda C.1



PART 7: COMMUNICATIONS 

SECTION 1 – OVERVIEW 

7.1.1 Communications Statement 
A. As an integral part of the greater Green Valley, Arizona

community, GVR strives to maintain open and transparent
communications in order to foster good relations with its
members, news organizations, and the general public.

B. Because GVR is a private corporation, it is not subject to the
same laws that govern municipalities, such as open meeting
statutes or laws that protect freedom of speech and freedom of
assembly. GVR is under no obligation to publicly disclose all
information about the organization and may keep certain
information relating to its members, employees and its
operations confidential. All GVR Directors, employees, and
volunteers are required to abide by GVR’s confidentiality policies.

SECTION 2 - EXTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS 

7.2.1 Public Information Officer (PIO) as Point of Contact 
GVR’s CEO shall serve as the official Public Information Officer (PIO) 
for The Corporation (CPM Part 4 Section 1: 4.1.1.E) or may 
delegate Public Information Officer (PIO) responsibilities. The PIO 
shall be the single point of contact for inquiries from non-members 
(general public) and news media.  

7.2.2 Information Prohibited from Public Release 

A. GVR protects the confidentiality of certain information in
conformance with its governing documents and applicable laws.
Unless otherwise compelled by law, or as part of a criminal
investigation, GVR will not release information nor comment on
the following:
1. Member information and records
2. Employment records and employees’ personal information
3. Privileged information between The Corporation and its legal

counsel
4. Information related to pending litigation
5. Any information that was made available in an Executive

Session of the Board

7.2.3 Correction of Inaccurate Information 

16

Attachment 1



GVR will take steps to correct inaccurate information reported by 
external media about The Corporation as soon as reasonably 
practicable after its discovery.  

7.2.4 Media Access 

Members of the media are welcome to request press passes, 
attend, document events and meetings that are open to the general 
GVR membership or the general public, as long as they take care to 
avoid intruding upon or disrupting those in attendance. 

If they have been invited to such events, Media representatives 
(e.g., reporters) are also welcome to attend members-only 
functions held on GVR property (such as GVR Club events) or 
events hosted by outside groups that are renting GVR facilities. 
Media representatives shall inquire with GVR in advance if they wish 
to attend non-public events or activities to which they have not 
received an invitation from GVR or the event’s host, including GVR 
classes and club activities held in reserved spaces.  

SECTION 3 - MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS 

7.3.1 Member Communications Sent to Staff 

GVR welcomes constructive feedback, questions, and concerns from 
members. Members should email operational concerns to 
hotline@gvrec.org. 

GVR will not respond to anonymous, obscene, harassing, belligerent 
or threatening communications received from any individual. 

7.3.2 Member Communications Sent to Board of Directors 

A. The CEO or CEO designee shall serve as GVR Email Administrator
and shall have the following responsibilities with respect to email
sent to the GVR Director email address – board@gvrec.org:
1. Responding to member emails requesting information and

forwarding same to the appropriate GVR staff member and
the Board of Directors;

2. Archiving email messages.

B. Member suggestions made at Board meetings or sent to the
Board by other means may be referred to the Board of Directors
for consideration.

17



SECTION 4: BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMUNICATIONS 

7.4.1     Board of Directors Email Policy 

GVR provides each Director with an official individual GVR 
Director Email Address. If a Director receives a communication 
directly from a member in a personal non-GVR email account or in 
the individual Director GVR Email Address that concerns GVR 
business and/or Board matters, the Director may choose to 
forward the same to the CEO for review, and if appropriate, 
archiving and response.   

Individual Directors may communicate with members directly 
through their email accounts, but official GVR Board 
positions/responses are to be approved and sent by the 
President, with a Board vote if appropriate. 

7.4.2 Board of Directors Internal Email Policy 

Directors may communicate among themselves and with staff by 
email using the individual GVR Director Email Address provided 
by GVR, but should not discuss policy or the business of the 
Corporation with a quorum of the Board, to avoid the perception 
that decisions are being made outside of meetings.  This 
promotes the goal of transparency (Section 7.1.1.A) with the 
membership by having debate and discussion in open meetings. 
Open meetings are required by Article IV, Section 5 of the 
Bylaws.   

18



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Part 6, Section 2: 6.2.2.K.1-5 Non-GVR Member Waiver of Fees 

Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup Meeting Date: March 22, 2023 

Presented By: Donna Coon, Chair Consent Agenda: Yes 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 

Action Requested: 
Review Part 6, Section 2: 6.2.2.K.1-5 Non-GVR Member Waiver of Fees Annual Request. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities 

Background Justification: 
BAC reviewed this at the December 13, 2022, meeting and put forth this motion and 
recommendation for the Board approval at the January Regular Meeting: MOTION: Coon 
moved / Walker seconded to recommend removing 6.2.2.K.5 which stated: Clubs may 
apply for a waiver of fees annually. The BAC will review applications to determine if fees 
are a hardship to the club and make a recommendation to the Board. Clubs will be notified 
of the Board’s decision. 
Passed: unanimous 

This was pulled from the Regular Meeting of the Board on January 25 in the Amend Agenda 
motion and returned to the BAC for further review. 

BAC reviewed 6.2.2.K.1-5 at the February 14, 2023, BAC meeting and decided to remove #5 
and change #3 to read “Non-members will pay an event fee of no more than one half of the 
daily guest fee approved by the Board. Staff will work with the Clubs to establish the event 
fee if requested.” Eliminate 6.2.2.K.5. 
Passed: unanimous 

Fiscal Impact: 
Depending on the fee charged, whether reduced or not reduced, will have a fiscal impact. 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the BAC recommended change to 6.2.2.K.1-5: change 6.2.2.K.3 to state: 3) Non-
members will pay an event fee of no more than one half of the daily guest fee approved by
the Board. Staff will work with the Clubs to establish the event fee if requested.” Remove #5.
2) Do not make changes to this section.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

19

Consent Agenda C.2



Recommended Motion: 
Part of Consent Agenda. Use motion only if pulled from Consent Agenda: Move to 
recommend approval by the Board of Directors to the amendment of Part 6, Section 2: 
6.2.2.K.1-5 by removing item 5 and changing item 3 to “Non-members will pay an event fee 
of no more than one half of the daily guest fee approved by the Board. Staff will work with 
the Clubs to establish the event fee if requested.” 

Attachments: 
1) CPM Part 6, Section 2: 6.2.2.K.1-5 Redline and Clean

20



CPM Part 6, Section 2: 6.2.2.K(1-5) - Redline 

K. Non-GVR Member Club Participant Policy:

1. Clubs listed as Social or Dance Clubs on GVR’s website may allow
non-GVR members to attend their events.

2. Non-members must sign a waiver.

3. Non-members will pay an event  fee of no mre than one half of the
daily guest fee approved established by the Board. Staff will work

with the Clubs to establish the event fee if requested.
4. Clubs will remit fee and record of attendance to GVR Club Liaison.
5. Clubs may apply for a waiver of fees annually. The BAC will review

applications to determine if fees are a hardship to the club and
make a recommendation to the Board. Clubs will be notified of the

Board’s decision.

CPM Part 6, Section 2: 6.2.2.K(1-4) - Clean 

K. Non-GVR Member Club Participant Policy:
1. Clubs listed as Social or Dance Clubs on GVR’s website may allow

non-GVR members to attend their events.
2. Non-members must sign a waiver.
3. Non-members will pay an event fee of no more than one half of the

daily guest fee approved by the Board. Staff will work with the
Clubs to establish the event fee if requested.

4. Clubs will remit fee and record of attendance to GVR Club Liaison.

21

Attachment 1



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Placement of Board Credo in 
Corporate Policy Manual 

Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: March 22, 2023 

Presented By: Donna Coon, Chair Consent Agenda: Yes  

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 

Action Requested: 
Approval of Placement of the Board Credo in Corporate Policy Manual Part 2 
Board of Directors, Section 1. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
The Board Credo was approved at the Board of Directors Meeting on February 
22, 2023. At the Board meeting it was asked where this Credo would be place. 
The Board directed the BAC to decide on the appropriate placement of the 
Credo. 

The BAC approved unanimous, at the March 14, 2023, BAC meeting, to 
recommend Board approval for the Board Credo to be in the CPM Part 2 Board 
of Directors, Section 1 and renumber Part 2 starting at Section 2. 
Board Options: 
1) Approve BAC decision and have staff fulfil the placement.
2) Make other suggestions for Board consideration.

Staff Recommendation: 
#1 

Recommended Motion: 
Part of Consent Agenda. Use this suggested motion if pulled from Consent 
Agenda: Move to approve the Committee decision on the placement of the 
Board Credo and have staff complete the process. 

Attachments: 
1) Updated Board Credo

22

Consent Agenda C.3



Green Valley Recreation Board Credo 

Our purpose is to serve the best interests of our current and future members through 
responsible and effective governance of GVR.  We represent ALL members and seek to ensure 
that all community interests are understood and considered in our decision making. 

As individually elected board members we commit to our members: 
• To show up, prepared, and be thoughtfully engaged for each meeting;
• To listen with an open mind and a desire to understand different ideas and

perspectives;
• To learn and develop our individual and collective capacity to make good governance

decisions;
• To seek input, consider data, utilize expertise and engage our professional staff in

informing our decision-making;
• To be transparent about our processes and decisions.
• We commit to abide by the current GVR governing documents.

We personally strive to: 
• Practice humility and self-awareness
• Learn from the past but focus on the future
• Listen with the intent to understand each other better
• Choose our own battles judiciously
• Support the decisions made by the group and be willing to disagree without

undermining the credibility of GVR and the board
• Tackle the hard issues
• Show gratitude and respect to each other, as well as GVR members and staff

We are neighbors, working together to make our community a great place to live, play and 
learn. 

23

Attachment 1



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Italian Club Request 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup.  Meeting Date: March 22, 2023 

Presented By: Donna Coon, BAC Chair       Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee/Department: 
Recreation Department and Board Affairs Committee (BAC) 

Action Requested: 
Consider approval of an application to establish an Italian Club. 

Strategic Plan Focus Area: 
Goal 2: Provide quality services and programs that effectively meet the recreational, social, 
and leisure education needs of our membership, allocating resources to support those 
programs 

Background Justification: 
The purpose of the GVR Italian Club will be to educate members who wish to learn about 
Italian culture, cooking and country. It is not limited to those of Italian descent, rather it will 
provide social gatherings for all GVR members who are interested.  

Application for GVR Italian Club was approved by the Recreation Department and signed by 
the CEO on February 2, 2023. The application was approved by the Board Affairs Committee 
on March 14, 2023, and has been recommended for approval by the Board of Directors. 

Fiscal Impact: 
N/A 
Board of Directors Options: 
1. Approve an application to establish an Italian Club
2. Table this discussion at this time.

Staff Recommendation: 
#1 

Staff Recommended Motion: 
Move to accept the Board Affairs Committee recommendation to approve an application to 
establish a GVR Italian Club. 

Attachments: 
1) Italian Club Application

24

Action Item A



Date: February 6, 2023 
To: Natalie Whitman, Chief Operations Officer 
From: Kathy Edwards, GVR Club Liaison 
Subj: Application for GVR Italian Club - Overview 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Benefit to GVR Membership 
The purpose of the GVR Italian club will be to educate members who wish to learn about 
Italian culture, cooking and country.  It is not limited to those of Italian descent, rather it 
will provide social gatherings for all GVR members who are interested. 

Space Requirements 
Meeting room only 

Club Membership (minimum 35 to form a club) 
There are currently 40 GVR members on the membership roster which have been verified 
by GVR staff. 

Club Officers  
Mike Caprio, President 
Paul Zelus, Vice President 
Jerry Deno, Secretary 
Laurel Caprio, Treasurer 

GVR Approval 
Approved by GVR Chief Operations Officer 
Signed by the GVR Chief Executive Officer February 2, 2023 

GVR Board Affairs Committee 
Please advise when this will be on the agenda for the GVR Board Affairs Committee and club 
representatives will be present to answer any questions. 

25

Attachment 1



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 
New GVR Club 

Application for Club Status 
Please read the FAQ and Application Instructions prior to completing this application 

This application and supporting documents must be completed in their entirety. Partial applications 
cannot be processed. Attach additional sheets if necessary. If you have questions, please contact the 
GVR Club Liaison. 

1. Proposed name of your club: The GVR Club Italian Club.

2. Have your interested members read the GVR Bylaws, and Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) posted
on the GVR Website, including Part 6: GVR Programs and Clubs? YES   X      NO___

3. You must have a minimum of thirty-five (35) GVR members to apply for "Club Status." Does your
group have thirty-five (35) or more interested GVR members? YES   X      NO___

4. Is the mission of your group consistent with GVR's mission: "To provide excellent facilities and
services that create opportunities for recreation, social activities, and leisure education to enhance
the quality of our members' lives? YES   X      NO___

Please explain below:  This will be a club to educate and learn of Italian culture, cooking, and
country, and not only for members of Italian descent.

5. How will this club benefit GVR and the membership? It will provide a venue for like-minded
members.

6. Please describe, in detail, the purpose, plan and charge of your group.

7. Why is your group seeking GVR "Club Status?" Check all that apply:

___ High interest in activity ___Tax purposes 
___ Better operation of group ___ Insurance 
 X   Facility Space  ___ Storage 
 X   Reservation Preference ___ Need for dues 
___ GVR support  ___ Other________________________ 

8. Does your group understand that facility reservations are not guaranteed and your meeting space
may vary from year to year? YES   X      NO___ 

26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Annual Work Plan
Prepared By: Scott Somers, CEO Meeting Date: March 22, 2023 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: NA 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Administration 

Action Requested:  
Consider approving the 2023 Proposed Annual Workplan 

Strategic Plan: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
The Board of Directors reviewed and discussed the draft 2023 Annual Workplan 
during its March 15 Board work session.  The highlighted areas identify changes 
made as a result of the work session.  

The proposed workplan coincides directly with the Board-approved 2022-2026 
Strategic Plan. Completion of the action items identified in this workplan will 
support fulfillment of the Strategic Plan Initiatives, Goals, and ultimately, the 
Vision of the organization.  

Fiscal Impact: 
Action items vary in cost, but items are budgeted in the 2023 Approved Budget. 

Board Options: 
1. Approve the 2023 Proposed Annual Workplan.
2. Approve the 2023 Proposed Annual Workplan with amendments.
3. Do not approved the 2023 Proposed Annual Workplan.
4. Provide alternative direction to staff.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion:  
Move to approved the 2023 Proposed Annual Workplan. 

Attachments: 
1) Proposed 2023 Annual Workplan

47

Action Item B



Memorandum 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Scott Somers, CEO 

CC:  GVR Senior Staff 

Date:  March 22, 2023 

RE:  Proposed 2023 Annual Workplan 

Administration/CEO 

2.2.3 Develop relationships with similar organizations to share trends, best practices, and steps to 
overcome customer service challenges.  

• CEO to continue participating in quarterly meetings with executives from similar organizations
to exchange knowledge and information. (Ongoing)

5.1.1 Provide staff support to the Board of Directors to enable proactive, complete communications 
about Board decisions.  

• Continue working with Board Secretary on crafting written responses to member inquires.
(Ongoing)

• Continue working with Communications to provide Board action synopsis to members.
(Ongoing)

5.2.1 Review the strategic plan regularly to ensure progress on action items and continuity year-over-
year with the plan. 

• Provide updates annually through the Annual Workplan and Annual Year-in-Review. (January
– March)

5.2.3 Utilize staff liaison and the strategic plan to support continuity of direction. 
• Staff and Legal Counsel to work together to develop recommended updates to Bylaws to

ensure compliance with State Statutes. (June)
o Bring recommendations to BAC for consideration. (July)
o Bring BAC recommendations to Board for consideration for placement on the 2024

ballot. (August)
• Work with Board of Directors and consultant on comprehensive review and improvements, of

and to Committees, to specifically include purpose, mission, and responsibilities, any
processes committees must follow, member terms, and appointment process. (July)

o Develop capital project review and approval process. (July)
• Review Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) for Policy vs. Operational matters. (August)

48

Attachment 1



• Review CPM for consistency, clarity, and flow. (August)
5.4.1 Encourage staff and Board to attend training conference and participate in professional 
associations.  

• Maintain Community Associations Institute (CAI) to seek continuing education opportunities
for Board and staff. (Ongoing)

• Seek additional Board and staff training opportunities such as Roberts Rules of Order,
Alexander Carrillo Consulting. (Ongoing)

• With HR, encourage staff to participate in professional association training and ongoing
education. (Ongoing)

5.5.1 Develop a continuity of operations plan that includes evacuation locations, IT operations, 
personnel emergency succession, document preservation, etc. 

• Ongoing Record Retention for all GVR Departments and digital preservation of records.
• Work with IT to create backup and redundant systems. (December)
• Design and implement a physical and electronic archive system. (December)
• Continue digital scanning of official documents and records. (December)
• Continue working with Green Valley Council (GVC) on regional emergency management

planning. (Ongoing)
5.6.1 Participate/partner with outside organizations such as Rotary, Chambers, GVC, GGVCF, etc. 
Continue membership and participation with Rotary and Chamber activities. Seek additional 
opportunities. (Ongoing)  

Board and Committees 

5.2.1 Review strategic plan regularly to ensure progress on action items and continuity year-over-year 
with the plan. See Administration/CEO 
5.2.2 Develop and adopt operating commitments for the Board to demonstrate courtesy, 
consideration, mutual respect, and willingness to listen to one another and staff.  

• Board to consider adopting Board Credo. (February)
5.2.3 Utilize staff liaison and the strategic plan to support continuity of direction. 

• Work with Board of Directors and consultant on comprehensive review and improvements, of
and to Committees, to specifically include purpose, mission, and responsibilities, any
processes committees must follow, member terms, and appointment process. (July)

Develop capital project review and approval process. (July) 
5.3.2 Develop a list and description of GVR values/principles and articulate roles and responsibilities. 

• Consider working with same consultant in 5.2.2 to assist in development and improvements.
(June)

• With the Board of Directors, develop a Board (or committee) ad-hoc committee to evaluate
GVR’s need for volunteers, assess the resources necessary to manage a volunteer pool, and
develop associated policy recommendations. (September)

Communications 

1.3.3 Improve interior and exterior signage: complete, consistent, accessible, concise, and attractive. 
• Complete pool deck signage update. (May)

49



• Complete the Aid Station project. (May)
1.3.4 Implement standard and electronic signage to heighten communication of activities and events. 

• With facilities, develop a center signage plan. (December)
• Launch the new website. (April)

2.2.4 Clarify communications procedures and distribute messaging to all staff so members receive 
consistent, trustworthy information from all GVR representatives.  

• Continue weekly staff bulletin. (Ongoing)
• Develop a method for measuring readership and create an improvement plan as needed.

(August)
• Develop and document an SOP that identifies types of messages that need to be disseminated

to various personnel. (December)
• Update monthly on project status. (Ongoing)

2.2.5 Develop and implement a member experience review plan related to customer service by 
department. (Similar to 2.1.1) 
3.3.2 Improve ease of access to GVR activity schedule and opportunities. 

• Develop and implement a social media plan. (September)
3.4.2 Continue to seek member feedback on a wide variety of matters via polls, surveys, in-person 
forums and virtual forums.  

• Conduct polls to follow-up on the 2022 survey results. (Throughout year)
3.4.3 Publicize recreation programs, GVR events, and GVR club events via diverse communications 
channels.  

• Develop a monthly report for Board and members to include monthly data reports and project
updates to include progress and dollars spent to date. (July)

• See 3.3.2. Continue building relationship with GV News through press releases and invitations
to participate/cover events and activities. (Ongoing)

3.4.4 Assess and replace, as needed, current digital platforms with more accessible options. 
With IT and Recreation, complete preliminary plans and gather bids for a new app. (December) 

Facilities Department 

1.1.1 Identify accessibility improvement areas. 
• Continue with facility-wide accessibility improvements, including ADA requirements and

addressing mobility challenges. (Ongoing)
• Complete an ADA audit of centers. (December)

1.1.3 Continue to identify and execute a process for regular upkeep and maintenance/predictive 
maintenance procedures. 

• Develop and implement center-specific standard operating procedures (SOP) book for
custodial. (April)

• Develop and implement daily/monthly/quarterly inspection reports for custodial, aquatics,
landscaping and maintenance. (April)

1.1.5 Introduce newer technology to improve energy efficiency when there are opportunities. 

50



• Reduce GVR’s electric energy consumption through lighting fixture and lamp conversions.
(Ongoing)

1.2.1 Create function-designated rooms with proper lighting, A/V, seating, furnishing, flooring, 
ventilation, etc. to complement and support specific activities. 

• Improve Del Sol Clubhouse to allow for member and club usage.
o Open level Pro Shop side opened for Billiards players. (February)
o Finalize architectural drawings for lower level and parking lot redesign. (May)
o Circulate RFP for construction services. (June)
o Award contract upon Board approval. (July)
o Secure a vendor to provide food and beverage services. (August)

• With architect, present WC Arts Center, and alternative, cost estimates. (May)
• Research expanding Desert Hills Ceramics Club space.

o Develop construction documents; develop estimates. (April)
o Circulate RFP for construction services. (April)
o Award a contract upon Board approval. (May)

1.2.2 Assess spaces for specific activities and equip those spaces properly, such as art class space with 
washable floors. 

• Address flooring and room finishes that are activity-specific when performing scheduled room
improvements and flooring replacements. (Ongoing)

1.2.4 Evaluate and improve capital request process. 
• With appropriate committee and Board approval, improve and approve the Club request

form. (May)
1.2.5 Employ newer technologies to benefit members’ abilities to fully utilize facilities. 

• Increase facility security (DSX proximity readers, video cameras) for GVR members, staff, and
guests by upgrading and/or installing new equipment and technologies. (July)

• Work with Recreation and IT to identify and relocate fencing, access points, and attendance
readers at specific locations to better track member usage and improve security. (August)

1.3.1 Develop, plan, and schedule to keep finishes and amenities up to date. 
• Develop and implement an interior redesign plan with contactor. (July)
• Remodel Canoa Hills’ locker rooms and restrooms. (September)
• Rehab Desert Hills locker rooms. (September)

1.3.3 Improve interior and exterior signage: complete, consistent, accessible, concise, attractive 
• Update interior/exterior signage at West Center, Desert Hills and Santa Rita Springs.

(December)
1.4.1 Explore opportunities to establish a coffee shop, etc. (See 1.2.1 Clubhouse vendor) 
1.4.2 Design peripheral grounds to provide outdoor recreation opportunities: park-like settings, 
walking trails, outdoor games, and activities. 

51



• Identify and begin implementing campus-wide locations for landscaping improvements to
include native pollinator species. (Ongoing)

1.4.3 Identify under-utilized areas that could be used for this purpose. (social gathering) 
• Replace and install new and additional pool deck loungers, conversation sets and umbrella

shades at Desert Hills, Canoa Hills and West Center, North Abrego (May)
• Reconsider shade trellis at West Center courtyard. (October)

3.1.2 Explore the idea of allocating space for specialized fitness centers.  
• Complete Desert Hills Fitness Center expansion project. (May)
• Repurpose current poker room and fitness room at Desert Hills to fitness studio. (October)
• Seek solutions to expand fitness center at Santa Rita Springs. (October)
• Work with architect to develop a plan for expanding fitness center at Las Campanas. (October)

4.2.1 Evaluate maintenance repair and replacement (MR&R) planned projects to confirm need. 
• With CEO and CFO, review MR&R project list to confirm need and timing of projects.

(June)
4.2.2 Explore transitioning to hybrid/electric vehicles when existing vehicles are replaced. 

• Consider options when replacing vehicles per MRR study and need. (Ongoing)
4.4.3 Maintain and continue to utilize the reserve study. (MR&R)

• Complete MRR identified projects for FY2023. (December)

Finance Department 

1.1.4 Develop and adopt a rolling 5-year Capital Projects Plan aligned with the strategic plan. 
• Look to strategic plan to inform the 5-year Capital Projects Plan. (Annually in October)

4.1.1 Identify options and tradeoffs for revenue diversification. 
• With staff and FAC, brainstorm options and alternatives; identify costs and benefits of each;

develop top recommended list; present to Board recommendations. (October)
4.2.1 Evaluate maintenance repair and replacement (MR&R) planned projects to confirm need. (See 

Facilities) 
4.3.1 Update and recommend financial policies. 

• Based on best practices and with FAC, recommend updated financial policies, including a
Procurement Policy for Board approval. (March)

• Complete the inventory of all GVR Fixed Assets assigning asset labels and updating the fixed
asset database as needed. (May)

4.3.2 Develop a plan for economic downturns. 
• As part of annual budget development process with staff, develop contingency plans, such as

decreasing expenditures by 10%, 20%, etc. (Should be include in 4.3.1 as a section in Financial
Policies)

4.3.3 Employ sound investment strategies to maximize passive income. 
• With Investment Committee and Board, continue utilizing sound, professional investment

strategies; update policies as needed. (Ongoing)

52



4.3.4 Provide continuous education for Board, committees, staff about GVR financial management 
and positions so that they can make decisions to monitor effectively.  

• Continue providing quarterly financial updates to Board and detailed financial statements to
the Fiscal Affairs Committee (FAC). (Ongoing)

o Provide annual primer on reading financial statements. (May)
• Receive unqualified audit opinion for 2022 financial audit. (March)
• Provide memo to Board that addresses past audit findings and recommendations and actions

taken as a result. (March)
• Review Fund EZ Purchase Order System, and other third-party PO systems and implement.

(September)
• Renew liability, worker’s comp, and flood insurance policies. (June)
• Perform successful worker’s comp audit. (August)
• Perform successful 401(k) audit. (August)
• Update and present memo on personnel costs vs. revenue (Annually in March).

4.4.1 Review the 3-year annual financial forecast with the Board. 
• Present 3-year annual financial forecast as part of the annual budget document. (Ongoing)

4.4.3 Maintain and continue to utilize the reserve study (MR&R). (See Facilities) 

Human Resources 

3.2.1 Collaborate with Recreation Department to develop a sustainable volunteer program to support 
GVR activities. 

• With Recreation, identify opportunities for volunteerism. (September)
• Update or develop volunteer job description. (September)
• Develop onboarding program and process for volunteers to include feedback opportunities.

(October/November)
• With Communications, advertise and promote volunteer opportunities. (November)

5.3.3 Provide training and team activities to help people demonstrate these GVR values. (See 2.2.2) 
• With CEO, develop a plan and schedule to regularly meeting with all staff to inform and

demonstrate values. (See above)
5.3.4 Incorporate values (5.3.2) into performance management. 

• Finalize updates to GVR’s Employee Handbook. (June)
• Research and recommend an official Employee Recognition Program. (September)
• Research and recommend an expanded employee wellness program. (October)

5.4.1 Encourage staff and Board to attend training conference and participate in professional 
associations. (See Administration/CEO) 
Not on strategic plan: 

• Participate in annual contractual negotiations for Benefit Plans/Open enrollment. (May)

IT Department 

1.2.5 Employ newer technologies to benefit members’ abilities to fully utilize facilities. 
• Partner with the Facilities Department and Chief Operating Officer to implement an all-site

surveillance solution to help improve security for all GVR campuses. (June)

53



3.4.4 With Communications, assess and replace, as needed, current digital platforms with more 
accessible options. 

• With Communications, launch a new, user-friendly website. (April)
5.5.1 Develop a continuity of operations plan that includes evacuation locations, IT operations, 
personnel emergency succession, document preservation, etc.  

• Continue developing and testing the Disaster Recovery Solution implemented in the prior
year. This will be an ongoing project. (Ongoing)

• Update end of life workstations and laptops. (September)
• Update end of life servers. (September)
• Maintain and update all network devices in all centers including switches and routers.

(ongoing)
• Continue managing member kiosks at six of the major centers. (Ongoing)

Member Services Department 

2.2.1 Implement a quality assurance system to ensure that exceptional customer service is 
happening, such as secret shopper, a review schedule to see how systems and processes are 
operating. 

• Develop and improve the Member Services function to ensure a high touch level of customer
service that builds confidence and trust from our members and Board. (Ongoing)

• Work towards fully documenting Membership SOPs and creating a comprehensive handbook.
(December)

• Partner with attorney to work towards becoming the expert with regards to GVR’s boundary,
master development agreements, deed restrictions, title agreements, and collections.
(Ongoing)

• Survey members who interact with front end staff to determine options for improvement.
(Ongoing)

• At regular intervals, review systems and processes with appropriate staff to ensure
consistency of understanding and of use and identify and implement improvements where
needed. (Ongoing)

• Partner with Communications to create a comprehensive New Member Welcome Packet.
(July)

• Continue to explore and find solutions to identify and decrease membership and guest card
misuse. (Ongoing)

2.2.5 Develop and implement a member experience review plan related to customer service by 
department. (Similar to 2.2.1) 
3.3.1 Conduct a policy and process review. 

• Identify policies and processes requiring member engagement. (July)
• Map processes and steps. (August)
• Identify process improvements from a customer-centric perspective. (October)
• Begin implementation. (December)

54



Recreation Department 

1.1.2 Assess and improve fitness center functionality. (Ongoing) 
1.2.1 Create function-designated rooms with proper lighting, A/V, seating, furnishing, flooring, 
ventilation, etc. to complement and support specific activities. (See Facilities) 
1.2.4 Evaluate and improve capital request process. (See Facilities)  
1.2.5 Employ newer technologies to benefit members’ abilities to fully utilize facilities.  

• With Communications, identify features of the new website and future new app that will
enhance member access to activities and facilities. (August)

• With IT and Facilities, develop a plan to move proximity readers to ease of access for
members, eliminate separate attendance readers, and improve the accuracy of real-time
facility use data (June)

2.1.1 Review current programming and make adjustments, if needed, to ensure variety and alignment 
with current and future member needs.  

• Through member surveys, identify gaps and needed adjustments. (Ongoing)
• Survey similar organizations to identify changing interests and needs. (September)

2.1.2 Explore a varied activity/service structure that accommodates all income levels. (See 2.1.1) 
2.1.3 Explore the possibility of virtual offerings for part-time residents and those homebound. (See 
2.1.1) (Rescheduled for 2024).  
2.1.4 Review and improve, if necessary, processes to assess quality of services and programs.  

• Assess the current reservations policies and practices and identify changes to improve the
member experience and increase efficient use of space (December)

2.2.1 Implement a quality assurance system to ensure that exceptional customer service is 
happening, such as secret shopper, a review schedule to see how systems and processes are 
operating.  

• Implement training programs to ensure exceptional customer service among Recreation
Services Assistants (RSAs) and Center Operations Assistants (COAs) (June)

2.2.5 With Member Services, develop and implement a member experience review plan related to 
customer service by department (Similar to 2.2.1) 
2.3.1 Explore changes in process of instructor hiring, actively recruiting instructors to meet member 
needs. 

• Develop a standardized vetting system for instructors, personal trainers, and professionals.
(August)

2.3.2 Explore guidelines with evaluation criteria for instructors and make improvements, if necessary. 
• Develop/update criteria and make improvements. (August)

3.1.3 Continue to identify and pursue programming that members want. 
• Events and performances, Fitness programs, Classes and tours, Drop-in activities. (December)
• Develop a recreation/events program plan for the Del Sol Clubhouse. (August)

3.1.4 Develop a prioritized 5-year plan for programming events. 
• Work with Facilities to remove the fountain in the WC courtyard to improve that space for

outdoor events. (July)
3.2.1 With HR, develop a recommendation for a Board ad-hoc committee to evaluate GVR’s need for 
volunteers, assess the resources necessary to manage a volunteer pool, and develop associated 
policy recommendations. (September)  

55



3.3.1 Conduct a policy and process review. 
• With Member Services, identify policies and processes requiring member engagement; map

processes and steps; identify process improvements from a customer-centric perspective;
with Communications, include policy and process in a Member Handbook; research and
implement solutions to decrease member and guest card abuse. (December)

• Work with IT to review process simplification and possibility of creating online forms for Clubs.
(Part of website launch in April)

56



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting
Desert Hills Fitness Equipment  

Authorized Transfer/Expenditure 

Prepared By: David Webster, CFO       Meeting Date: March 22, 2023 

Presented By: David Webster, CFO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee 

Action Requested: 
Authorize the transfer of an expense from Initiatives to Operations and Authorize an 
expenditure of approximately $79,836 from Initiatives to pay the balance owed on fitness 
equipment for the Desert Hills Fitness Center  

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members.  

Background Justification: 
GVR Staff has ordered the fitness equipment for the expansion of the Desert Hills Fitness 
Center.  The original deposit (50%) for this order was $89,413.35 and was paid for out of GVR 
Operating cash.  The balance due Arizona Health for this equipment is $79,836, which is less 
than planned since staff have amended the original order.  It is recommended that the entire 
purchase be funded by the Initiatives Fund.  To accomplish this, the following two step 
process is required: 

1. Transfer the $89,413.35 expense from the Initiatives Fund to the Operating Fund to
reimburse for the deposit.

2. Directly pay $79,836.00 from the Initiatives Fund to Arizona Health for the balance
due.

The 5-year projection of the Initiatives Fund indicates there is sufficient cash in the Initiatives 
Fund to make this asset acquisition. 

Fiscal Impact: 
The Operating Fund will increase by $89,413.35 
The Initiatives Fund will decrease by $169,249.35 

Board Options: 
1) Authorize the transfer of an expense from Initiatives to Operations and Authorize an

expenditure of approximately $79,836 from Initiatives to pay the balance owed on
fitness equipment for the Desert Hills Fitness Center

2) Not approve transfer and expenditure
3) Approve alternate method of funding the purchase of Desert Hills fitness equipment.

57

Action Item C



Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to authorize the transfer of an expense from Initiatives to Operations and Authorize an 
expenditure of approximately $79,836 from Initiatives to pay the balance owed on fitness 
equipment for the Desert Hills Fitness Center 

Attachments: 
None 

58



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting
Procurement and Spending Authority Policy 

Prepared By: David Webster, CFO         Meeting Date: March 22, 2023 

Presented By: Carol Crothers, Treasurer Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee 

Action Requested: 
Board approval of the new Section 4 to Part 5 of the CPM to establish the policy 
for procurement of goods and services for GVR.  

Strategic Plan Goal:  
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value 
for our members.  

Background Justification:  
To establish a policy to set out the requirements and guidelines for procuring 
goods and services for GVR, the Fiscal Affairs Committee and staff recommends 
that the new Section 4 to Part 5 of the CPM be adopted.  GVR legal counsel has 
reviewed the policy which policy establishes bidding requirements and 
signature spending approval limits for GVR procurement activities.   

Fiscal Impact: 
This policy provides greater controls over the procurement of goods and 
services for GVR. 

Board Options: 
1) Approve recommended Procurement policy
2) Not approve the policy.
3) Approve an alternate Procurement policy.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option 1  

Attachments: 
1) Procurement Policy

59

Action Item D



02‐18‐2023 Final Draft 

PROPOSED NEW SECTION 4 to PART 5: FISCAL/ACCOUNTING 

SECTION 4 – PROCUREMENT POLICY (Adopted _______________) 

5.4.1  Overview

The purpose of this policy is to set out the requirements and guidelines 
for procuring goods and services for GVR on behalf of the Corporation 
to ensure GVR receives value for the money spent.  This policy 
establishes the approved parameters to be used for all contracts, 
purchases, leases, orders of goods, supplies, construction, professional 
services, and other contractual services.  These requirements are based 
on the principles of accountability, transparency, openness, fairness, 
integrity, and ensuring value.  This policy is consistent with CPM 5.1.3, 
as to setting financial limits established by the Board.

The policy applies to all staff/employees of GVR who have responsibility 
for procuring goods and services.  The CEO and CFO are authorized to 
develop internal operational procedures to further implement this policy 
for the applicable Departments, Directors, Managers and staff to follow.

5.4.2. Bidding and Disbursement Process:

All Department managers and staff are responsible for ensuring that 
goods and services are procured for good value, and that a fair 
procurement process is used to select vendors.  The CEO and CFO have 
the overall responsibility for the administrative procurement process, 
overseen by the Board as set forth herein.  Artificial division, splitting, 
or fragmentation of a transaction/purchase order to circumvent 
requirements of source selection or bidding is prohibited. 

Internal operational procedures may include processes relating to 
purchasing recurring items and executing recurring operational 
contracts. This policy shall serve as the Board’s resolution under Article 
VII, Section 4.A of the Bylaws, exempting such recurring contracts from 
certain bidding requirements, and not requiring signature by the 
President.

The procurement levels in the policy below do not relieve staff of the 
responsibility to ensure that they comply with the Board-approved 
budgetary limits.  The CEO retains the authority under CPM 4.1.2.A.2 
and Board Budget Development Policy 1.1.3.C and D to manage 
expenditures within the approved budget without incurring 
indebtedness, but with the ability to shift amounts between line items 
to meet current or anticipated needs (subject to reporting to the Board 

60

Attachment 1



02‐18‐2023 Final Draft 

any increase or decrease by more than 15% or $15,000.00, whichever 
is greater).   

The Board-authorized bidding and purchase approval requirements, as 
well as signing authority for all purchases is outlined in the chart below, 
except as shown below the chart in 5.4.3:

AMOUNT OF 
PURCHASE 

BIDDING 
REQUIREMENT 

PURCHASE 
APPROVAL/SIGNATURE

Under $5,000 Not Required  
Authorized Department 

Director or 
Manager/Supervisor 

$5,000 to 
$99,999 

Quotes/Bids required. 
No posting on GVR 
website. RFP and/or 

Scope of Work 
developed by staff, 
sent to at least 3 

vendors.   

CEO or CFO Approves. 

CEO Signs Contract. 

$100,000+ 

Sealed Bidding Process. 
Open to all vendors 

that choose to submit a 
response to RFP 

developed by staff.  
Posted on GVR 

Website.  Staff and 
CEO review submittals 

and make 
recommendations. 

Board Approves.  

President Signs Contract. 

5.4.3. Exceptions to Bidding and/or Approval Process:

Recurring monthly and annual bills, e.g. property taxes, employee 
health, routine maintenance, and life insurance, etc., are exempt from 
the purchase order and bidding requirement.  The CFO or the CEO may 
approve these regularly occurring bills and contracts.  Board approval is 
not required unless over $100,000.00.  Recurring operational contracts 
giving rise to these types of expenditures do not require signature by 
the President (i.e., the first two categories above).  

61



02‐18‐2023 Final Draft 

Maintenance, Repair and Replacement Funds (Section 3 of CPM 
Part 5: 

 (MRR-A) CPM 5.3.3. (Fund for maintenance, repair,
replacement of existing equipment and facilities in
Component List of Annual Reserve Study).  The CEO or CFO
approve any purchases and contracts, and the CEO signs, for
any amounts, consistent with 5.3.3.D, authorizing spending
up to 110% of a Component’s Fully Funded Balance for the
current fiscal year in the current Annual Reserve Study.
Board approval is required only for more than 110%.  The
bidding process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart
above.

 (MRR-B) CPM 5.3.4. (Fund for replacement of pools and
spas).  All expenditures of money from this fund and
therefore, all contracts/purchases, must be approved by the
Board, and the President shall sign contracts.  The bidding
process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart above.

 Initiatives Reserve Fund. CPM 5.3.5.  All expenditures of
money from this fund and therefore, all contracts/purchases,
must be approved by the Board, and the President shall sign
contracts.  The bidding process will follow columns 1 and 2 in
the chart above.

The requirement for obtaining bids is waived in the following cases:

 Sole Source/Direct Award, if approved in advance by the CEO and
the Board.

 Emergency procurement/repair of any amount, whether budgeted
or unbudgeted, if approved by the CEO (or CFO or other senior
management in the CFO’s absence).  The CEO may use funds from the
Emergency Reserve Fund for emergencies over $25,000 (CPM 5.3.6.D).

5.4.4. Lease or Rental Agreement:

The CFO and CEO must approve any lease or rental agreement 
exceeding six (6) months in duration and with an aggregate annual 
payment exceeding $5,000.00. The Board must approve all such 
agreements that exceed $100,000, or one year in length. 

5.4.5. Vendor Relationships:

Gifts exceeding $50.00 in value, from a vendor or prospective vendor   
of goods and services for the Corporation, given to any employee(s) are 
strictly prohibited. 

62



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Internal Financial Manual, 
Process Approach to Major Capital Projects, 

and a Monthly Project Plan  
Prepared By: Carol Crothers, Director Meeting Date: March 22, 2023 

Presented By: Carol Crothers, Director Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Board Director: 
Carol Crothers 

Action Requested: 
1) Approve a high-level process approach to analyzing, approving, funding and awarding
contracts for major capital projects; and 2) Require a high-level project plan that is reviewed
monthly that identifies all the steps necessary to get projects completed in a timely fashion.

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1:  Provide excellent facilities for members (as measured by member survey questions) 
Goal 2:  Provide quality services and programs that effectively meet the recreational, social 
and leisure education needs of our membership, allocating resources to support those 
programs (as measured by member survey questions)   
Goal 4:  Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members (as measured by member survey related to good value);  
Goal 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation (surveys to 
be developed)  

Background Justification: 
Our CEO feels that he does not have adequate policy level direction from the Board to do his 
job.  With all the changes to the CPM, the movement towards policy governance that 
recommended a separation of the CPM into a policy manual and an operation manual, and 
the dramatic reorganization of the CPM started 2 years ago, we have lost much of the 
institutional wisdom of the past.  Our financial policies are not clearly and concisely written 
down in the CPM. The FAC working with CEO Somers and CFO Webster has recommended 
written procurement policies that are going through the approval process and should be 
available for Board approval at the regular March Board meeting.     

We have not had many major capital projects (other than MR&R which is handled separately) 
since most GVR facilities have been built by developers.  However, GVR evolved a practice 
(policy?) of having the Planning and Evaluation Committee (P&E) review projects, make an 
evaluation, and recommend projects to be put on the long-range plan.  FAC reviews whether 
there is enough funding to cover the estimated total cost of the projects in the timeframe 
recommended.  If the long-range plan is approved by the Board, detailed plans are produced and 
reviewed with P&E. If the detailed plan (or often alternative plans) are approved by P&E and there 
has been enough money identified by FAC, the plan or plans are taken to the Board for 

63

Action Item E



approval so the project can go out to bid.  After the bids have been received and the 
projected construction costs still fit within the total project cost, the Board is asked to 
approve a construction contract.  The construction contract is only one part of the total 
project cost which is budgeted in the capital plan.  This may not be the best practice or policy, 
but until a new one is developed and approved, I recommend that this practice be followed 
by our CEO and the Board.  This practice was followed for the East Center Pool project but it 
was not followed for the Desert Hills Fitness Center.  The initial DH plans were not approved 
because of the spin studio and the entrance way.  New plans were never brought back to 
P&E or the Board.  The Board was asked to approve a sole source cost plus contract because 
we were told it was the only way administration could meet the end-of-year project 
completion request of the Board (see the motion to approve the DH contract).  

Finally, both the Board and administration need to find a better way to keep projects on 
track. I recommend that administration be asked to produce a detailed project plan with all 
contingencies identified.  The plan should be reviewed monthly with any problems or 
potential delays identified with action plans.  If any of the potential delays will be caused by 
the Board or its committees, the Board commits to do everything possible to keep the project 
on schedule. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Greater visibility to total project costs. 

Board Options: 
1. Approve one or more of the motions.
2. Approve the 1st motion contingent on an updated policy statement being created and
approved by the Board by 9/30/2023.

Recommended Motion: 
1. Move that the traditional major project approval process is followed until a new policy is 
defined and approved by the Board.
2. Move that the Board request detailed project plans with all contingencies identified for 
all major projects.  Plans will be updated monthly.  The Board will commit to addressing any 
potential delays caused by the Board or its committees.

Attachments: 
1. Motion for approval of the DH cost plus contract
2. Proposed procurement policy

64



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Award of Construction Contract  

Desert Hills Fitness Center Tenant Improvement 

Prepared By: David Jund, Facilities Director Meeting Date: August 24, 2022

Presented By: David Jund, Facilities Director Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Facilities Department 

Action Requested:  
Award construction contract to Barker Contracting to construct the Desert Hills 
Fitness Center Tenant Improvement Project. 

Strategic Plan:  
Goal #1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of 
active and social opportunities. 

Background Justification: 
At the February 23, 2022, regular meeting, the Board of Directors approved
to remodel the shuffleboard courts at Desert Hills to a Health/Fitness Facility. 

Motion: Accept P&E Committee’s recommendations to make minimal 
improvements to the upper level of the Canoa Hills Clubhouse, a usable 
drop-in space for GVR Members, and to remodel the shuffleboard courts 
at Desert Hills to a Health/Fitness Facility, and to add monthly progress 
reports once the scope and cost are identified, and to complete the 
project this year. 

Staff engaged WSM Architects to develop the scope of the project and to 
produce Construction Documents (CD’s), cost estimating, and submit designs 
for permitting.  

During the design development process the architect reached out to 3 General  
Contractors to make them aware of the project under development and to 
garner their interest in bidding the project once CD’s were completed. All three 
contractors have completed projects for GVR in the past and each  
stated to the architect that they would require at least 3-4 weeks to assemble a 
proposal based on the submitted scope of work within the CD’s.  

Attachment 1

65



With the stipulation in the approved motion of “to complete the project this 
year” and GVR receiving completed CD’s on August 18, 2022 from which 
contractors could build a proposal, it created an exigency that would not permit 
further delay resulting from a 3-4-week competitive bid solicitation. It is 
recommended by staff to proceed with a noncompetitive method of awarding 
the construction contract. 

The option of a noncompetitive award of a construction contract is considered 
by staff as the best way to continue moving the project forward expeditiously. 

GVR is not required to enter into competitive bidding for awarding contracts. It 
is a practice that staff routinely undertakes but is not a requirement within any 
of the governing documents or state statutes.  

After reviewing completed commercial project portfolios, including GVR 
projects, staff is recommending awarding the construction contract to Barker 
Contracting. Barker Contracting was the General Contractor that constructed 
the 2nd Phase of Las Campanas, which is the entire building and parking lot east 
of the Fitness Center and Locker Rooms.  

Fiscal Impact: 
In May, WSM had construction cost consulting firm, Compusult, provide a 
Statement of Probable Costs on the then conceptual project design. Compusult 
returned a Total Construction Cost w/o Escalation of $877,900. WSM performed 
some Value Engineering work while developing the now completed CD’s. 
However, the finished drawings received on 8/18/2022 have not been cost 
estimated. 

Barker Contracting submitted a Cost Plus, or an “open book” contract on 
8/17/2022. This type of contract requires the owner (GVR) to reimburse the 
contractor (Barker Contracting) for all costs incurred by the contractor and adds 
on a 12% fee for services. This type of contract is increasingly utilized for such 
projects. 

As part of the contract, Barker will prepare and submit to GVR, in writing, a 
Control Estimate within 14 days of executing the contract agreement. The 
Control Estimate will include the estimated Cost of the Work plus the  
contractor’s fee.   

The Control Estimate will be used to monitor actual costs and the timely 

66



performance of the work. 

Barker Contracting will update the Control Estimate with each Application for 
Payment. This provides frequent monitoring of progress and allows GVR to 
track exactly what every step in the project costs.  

Please note the Article 14 of the contract allows GVR to terminate the contract 
at any time for “convenience”. 

Board Options: 
1. Award Barker Contracting the contract to construct the Fitness Center

Expansion at Desert Hills.

2. Provide alternative direction to staff

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to award the construction contract of the GVR Desert Hills Fitness Center
Tenant Improvement to Barker Contracting.   

Attachments: 

• CPM Section 1, subsection 5.1.3

• CPM Section 1, subsection 4.1.2

• CPM Appendix 1, SECTION 1, subsection 1.1.3

• Barker Contracting AIA Document A103-2017, dated 8/17/2022

• Barker Contracting AIA Document A201-2017, dated 8/17/2022

67



02‐18‐2023 Final Draft 

PROPOSED NEW SECTION 4 to PART 5: FISCAL/ACCOUNTING 

SECTION 4 – PROCUREMENT POLICY (Adopted _______________) 

5.4.1  Overview

The purpose of this policy is to set out the requirements and guidelines 
for procuring goods and services for GVR on behalf of the Corporation 
to ensure GVR receives value for the money spent.  This policy 
establishes the approved parameters to be used for all contracts, 
purchases, leases, orders of goods, supplies, construction, professional 
services, and other contractual services.  These requirements are based 
on the principles of accountability, transparency, openness, fairness, 
integrity, and ensuring value.  This policy is consistent with CPM 5.1.3, 
as to setting financial limits established by the Board.

The policy applies to all staff/employees of GVR who have responsibility 
for procuring goods and services.  The CEO and CFO are authorized to 
develop internal operational procedures to further implement this policy 
for the applicable Departments, Directors, Managers and staff to follow.

5.4.2. Bidding and Disbursement Process:

All Department managers and staff are responsible for ensuring that 
goods and services are procured for good value, and that a fair 
procurement process is used to select vendors.  The CEO and CFO have 
the overall responsibility for the administrative procurement process, 
overseen by the Board as set forth herein.  Artificial division, splitting, 
or fragmentation of a transaction/purchase order to circumvent 
requirements of source selection or bidding is prohibited. 

Internal operational procedures may include processes relating to 
purchasing recurring items and executing recurring operational 
contracts. This policy shall serve as the Board’s resolution under Article 
VII, Section 4.A of the Bylaws, exempting such recurring contracts from 
certain bidding requirements, and not requiring signature by the 
President.

The procurement levels in the policy below do not relieve staff of the 
responsibility to ensure that they comply with the Board-approved 
budgetary limits.  The CEO retains the authority under CPM 4.1.2.A.2 
and Board Budget Development Policy 1.1.3.C and D to manage 
expenditures within the approved budget without incurring 
indebtedness, but with the ability to shift amounts between line items 
to meet current or anticipated needs (subject to reporting to the Board 

Attachment 2

68



02‐18‐2023 Final Draft 

any increase or decrease by more than 15% or $15,000.00, whichever 
is greater).   

The Board-authorized bidding and purchase approval requirements, as 
well as signing authority for all purchases is outlined in the chart below, 
except as shown below the chart in 5.4.3:

AMOUNT OF 
PURCHASE 

BIDDING 
REQUIREMENT 

PURCHASE 
APPROVAL/SIGNATURE

Under $5,000 Not Required  
Authorized Department 

Director or 
Manager/Supervisor 

$5,000 to 
$99,999 

Quotes/Bids required. 
No posting on GVR 
website. RFP and/or 

Scope of Work 
developed by staff, 
sent to at least 3 

vendors.   

CEO or CFO Approves. 

CEO Signs Contract. 

$100,000+ 

Sealed Bidding Process. 
Open to all vendors 

that choose to submit a 
response to RFP 

developed by staff.  
Posted on GVR 

Website.  Staff and 
CEO review submittals 

and make 
recommendations. 

Board Approves.  

President Signs Contract. 

5.4.3. Exceptions to Bidding and/or Approval Process:

Recurring monthly and annual bills, e.g. property taxes, employee 
health, routine maintenance, and life insurance, etc., are exempt from 
the purchase order and bidding requirement.  The CFO or the CEO may 
approve these regularly occurring bills and contracts.  Board approval is 
not required unless over $100,000.00.  Recurring operational contracts 
giving rise to these types of expenditures do not require signature by 
the President (i.e., the first two categories above).  

69



02‐18‐2023 Final Draft 

Maintenance, Repair and Replacement Funds (Section 3 of CPM 
Part 5: 

 (MRR-A) CPM 5.3.3. (Fund for maintenance, repair,
replacement of existing equipment and facilities in
Component List of Annual Reserve Study).  The CEO or CFO
approve any purchases and contracts, and the CEO signs, for
any amounts, consistent with 5.3.3.D, authorizing spending
up to 110% of a Component’s Fully Funded Balance for the
current fiscal year in the current Annual Reserve Study.
Board approval is required only for more than 110%.  The
bidding process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart
above.

 (MRR-B) CPM 5.3.4. (Fund for replacement of pools and
spas).  All expenditures of money from this fund and
therefore, all contracts/purchases, must be approved by the
Board, and the President shall sign contracts.  The bidding
process will follow columns 1 and 2 in the chart above.

 Initiatives Reserve Fund. CPM 5.3.5.  All expenditures of
money from this fund and therefore, all contracts/purchases,
must be approved by the Board, and the President shall sign
contracts.  The bidding process will follow columns 1 and 2 in
the chart above.

The requirement for obtaining bids is waived in the following cases:

 Sole Source/Direct Award, if approved in advance by the CEO and
the Board.

 Emergency procurement/repair of any amount, whether budgeted
or unbudgeted, if approved by the CEO (or CFO or other senior
management in the CFO’s absence).  The CEO may use funds from the
Emergency Reserve Fund for emergencies over $25,000 (CPM 5.3.6.D).

5.4.4. Lease or Rental Agreement:

The CFO and CEO must approve any lease or rental agreement 
exceeding six (6) months in duration and with an aggregate annual 
payment exceeding $5,000.00. The Board must approve all such 
agreements that exceed $100,000, or one year in length. 

5.4.5. Vendor Relationships:

Gifts exceeding $50.00 in value, from a vendor or prospective vendor   
of goods and services for the Corporation, given to any employee(s) are 
strictly prohibited. 

70


	Attachment CPM Part 7 CLEAN.pdf
	PART 7: COMMUNICATIONS
	SECTION 1 – OVERVIEW
	SECTION 2 - EXTERNAL COMMUNICATIONS
	SECTION 3 - MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS
	7.4.1     Board of Directors Email Policy
	7.4.2 Board of Directors Internal Email Policy



	Attachment GVR Italian Club Application Package.pdf
	Blank Page




